
   
 

                

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Regular Meeting 

April 26, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL  

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Traffic Study Review with Union Township Board of Trustees – Isabella County Road Commission  

 

6. CLOSED SESSION 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT: Restricted to three minutes regarding issues on this agenda 

 

9. REPORTS/BOARD COMMENTS 

A. Current List of Boards and Commissions – Appointments as needed 

 EDA Appointments 

 Cultural and Recreational Commission Appointment 

 

10. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Communications 

B. Minutes – April 12, 2017- regular meeting 

C. Bills    

D. Payroll 

E. Meeting Pay 

F. Fire Reports 

G. 1.1 – 1.6 Global Ends  Annual Review 

H. 2.5 Financial Condition and Activities 

I. 2.5.10 Cash Flow Ratio 

J. 2.6 Asset Protection 

 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion / Action:  Approval of Contract for Professional Services between Gordie Fraser and 

Charter Township of Union 

B. Discussion/ Action:  Approval of the purchase of 2017 ½ Ton Extended Cab Work Truck 

C. Discussion / Action:  3.3 Board Members Code of Conduct 

D. Discussion / Action:  3.4 Agenda Planning 

 

12. MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

13. EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENT: Restricted to 5 minutes regarding any issue 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
14. FINAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 

 

       15.  ADJOURNMENT      











 

 

2017 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION  
Board of Trustees 

Regular Meeting 

  

A regular meeting of the Charter Township of Union Board of Trustees was held on April 12, 

2017 at 7:00 p.m. at Union Township Hall. 
 

Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 

Present:  Supervisor Gunning, Clerk Cody, Trustees B. Hauck, Lannen, Mikus, and Woerle 

Excused:  Treasurer Rice 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Lannen moved Cody supported to approve the agenda as presented.  Vote: Ayes: 6 Nays: 0. 

Motion carried. 

 

Presentations 

 

Public Hearings  
 

Public Comment - open 7: 01 p.m.  

No comments 

 

Reports/Board Comments 

Woerle – Planning Commission formed a committee to discuss the Future Land Use Map and 

will report to the Commissioners at a special meeting on April 25, 2017. 

Cody – Updates from City of Mt. Pleasant Commission meeting. 

Mikus – Sustainability Committee updates from the March meeting. 

 
Consent Agenda 

A. Communications 

B. Minutes March 22, 2017 – Regular Meeting 

C. Minutes March 25, 2017 – Special Meeting 

D. Bills 

E. Payroll 

F. Meeting Pay 

G. Fire Reports 

  

B. Hauck moved Cody supported to approve the consent agenda as presented. Vote:  Ayes: 6 

Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

BOARD AGENDA   

 

A.  Discussion / Action: Charitable Gaming Resolution – Community Compassion 

Network 

Mikus moved Woerle supported to approve the Resolution for Charitable Gaming 

Licenses, recognizing The Community Compassion Network (CNN) as a non-profit 

organization in the community.  Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Supervisor Gunning, Clerk 

Cody, Trustees B. Hauck, Lannen, Mikus, and Woerle. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 



 

 

 

B. Discussion / Action (Woerle):  Clean Up Day Service Agreement with Granger 

Waste Services 

Recusal –Phil Mikus recused himself due to a conflict of interest. 

Cody moved Woerle supported to approve the service agreement with Granger 

Waste Services to provide solid waste collection and disposal services for the annual 

Clean Up Day event and to allow execution of the Agreement by the Township 

Manager.  Vote:  Ayes: 5 Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

C. Discussion / Action:  Clean Up Day Service Agreement with Advanced 

Technology Recycling (ATR) 

Mikus moved B. Hauck supported to approve the service agreement with Advanced 

Technology Recycling (ATR) to provide electronic waste collection and disposal 

services for the annual Clean Up Day event and to allow execution of the Agreement 

by the Township Manager.  Vote:  Ayes: 6 Nays: 0. Motion carried. 

 

MANAGER COMMENTS 

Township Manager, Stuhldreher excused. 

Sherrie Teall, Financial Director / Acting Township Manager commented on the following: 

 April 26 (4-6p.m.) Staff/Boards/Commissions Ethics presentation. 

 We are the middle of the annual audit and it is going well, final financial reports should 

be available to the board by the end of May. 

 We paid off the 2004 Sewer System bond early, saving the Township over $15,000 in 

interest 

 

EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENT - Open 7:31 p.m.  

Andy Theisen, 1520 E. Deerfield Rd. – Commented on condition of Deerfield Rd. 

Jim Horton of the 4
th

 District County Commission updated the board on the county government. 

 

FINAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Lannen – Commented on expired EDA seats. 

Woerle – Thanked everyone again for their support with the Human Rights Resolution. 

B. Hauck – Commented on Consumers Energy use and asked if solar power studies have ever 

been completed. 

Mikus – Would like the Township Manager to prepare a report to the Township Board from his 

discussion with the Road Commission. 

Cody – Commented that the Road Commission will be having an Ad Hoc meeting on 4/29. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Cody moved Woerle supported to adjourn the meeting at 8:05 p.m.  Vote: Ayes: 6 Nays: 0.   

Motion carried. 

 
 

APPROVED BY:                        ___________________________________________ 

     Lisa Cody, Clerk 

 

 

                                                     ____________________________________________   

     Ben Gunning, Supervisor 
(Recorded by Jennifer Loveberry) 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 1/1Page: 04/20/2017 11:53 AM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

CHECK DATE FROM 04/13/2017 - 04/26/2017

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 101 POOLED CHECKING

3,419.43 21ST CENTURY MEDIA-MICHIGAN013581924010104/26/2017
247.98 ARROW UNIFORM000431924110104/26/2017
175.00 BILL'S CUSTOM FAB, INC.000661924210104/26/2017
155.00 C & C ENTERPRISES, INC.000951924310104/26/2017
484.70 CMS INTERNET, LLC001291924410104/26/2017
190.00 CODE OFFICIALS CONFERENCE-MI010241924510104/26/2017
579.10 COYNE OIL CORPORATION001551924610104/26/2017
204.65 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS011711924710104/26/2017
40.00 FOUR SEASON'S EXTERMINATING002311924810104/26/2017
21.97 GILL-ROY'S HARDWARE002491924910104/26/2017
357.44 GRAINGER002611925010104/26/2017
185.84 HACH COMPANY002661925110104/26/2017
396.00 KENEWELL GROUP013241925210104/26/2017
77.50 KRAPOHL FORD & LINCOLN003621925310104/26/2017

4,349.99 L S L PLANNING015171925410104/26/2017
6,426.25 MCKENNA ASSOCIATES015061925510104/26/2017

80.00 MCLAREN CENTRAL MICHIGAN013561925610104/26/2017
819.54 METTLER-TOLEDO, INC.004051925710104/26/2017
110.00 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL EXECUTIVES015381925810104/26/2017
218.20 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE004201925910104/26/2017

2,500.00 MIDDLE MICHIGAN DEVELOPMENT CORP004371926010104/26/2017
21.08 NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES004941926110104/26/2017

12,805.72 NORTHERN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY004971926210104/26/2017
45.00 SHAY WATER CO/CUSTOM COFFEE SERV012931926310104/26/2017
171.21 SHERWIN WILLIAMS005971926410104/26/2017
20.00 KIMBERLY SMITH006011926510104/26/2017
430.00 STU'S ELECTRIC MOTOR006291926610104/26/2017
194.45 WINN TELECOM007231926710104/26/2017

2,093.58 WOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS012461926810104/26/2017

101 TOTALS:

36,819.63 Total of 29 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
36,819.63 Total of 29 Checks:



CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 1/2Page: 04/20/2017 11:54 AM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

CHECK DATE FROM 04/13/2017 - 04/26/2017

AmountDescriptionVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 101 POOLED CHECKING

2,107.77 ADS FOR BOR, EMPLMNT CLASSIFIED21ST CENTURY MEDIA-MICHIGAN013581924010104/26/2017
1,311.66 ADS FOR BOT, PLANNING, ZONING

3,419.43 

47.12 UNIFORMSARROW UNIFORM000431924110104/26/2017
47.12 UNIFORMS
76.87 UNIFORMS
76.87 UNIFORMS

247.98 

175.00 AERATOR # 3 CUT AND PAINT GUARDBILL'S CUSTOM FAB, INC.000661924210104/26/2017
155.00 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES JAMESON HALLC & C ENTERPRISES, INC.000951924310104/26/2017
484.70 SERVER AND PHONE SERVICE-MAY 2017CMS INTERNET, LLC001291924410104/26/2017
190.00 COCM 2017 SPRING CONF-SOMMERCODE OFFICIALS CONFERENCE-MI010241924510104/26/2017
579.10 GAS & FUELCOYNE OIL CORPORATION001551924610104/26/2017

144.95 COPY PAPERDBI BUSINESS INTERIORS011711924710104/26/2017
46.43 MONITOR RISER FOR WTR/SWR ASSISTANT
13.27 BINDERS FOR ASSESSING

204.65 

40.00 TWP HALL INT/EXT TREATMENTFOUR SEASON'S EXTERMINATING002311924810104/26/2017
21.97 REPLACMNT PARTS FOR TWP HALL FLAGGILL-ROY'S HARDWARE002491924910104/26/2017

357.44 V-BELT AND LIMIT SWITCHGRAINGER002611925010104/26/2017
185.84 PHOSPHORUS TNTHACH COMPANY002661925110104/26/2017
396.00 BUSINESS CARDS - TRUSTEESKENEWELL GROUP013241925210104/26/2017

38.75 2011 W/S SUPER DUTY-OIL CHANGEKRAPOHL FORD & LINCOLN003621925310104/26/2017
38.75 PARKS TRUCK OIL CHANGE

77.50 

4,349.99 MASTER PLAN CHARGES - MARCHL S L PLANNING015171925410104/26/2017

1,170.00 FEE STUDY & RECOM. FINAL PMTMCKENNA ASSOCIATES015061925510104/26/2017
5,256.25 BLDG OFFICIAL INSP SERV - MAR 2017

6,426.25 

80.00 DOT PHYSICAL-MCPHERSONMCLAREN CENTRAL MICHIGAN013561925610104/26/2017
819.54 FULL PREVENTIVE MAINT ONSITE-WWTPMETTLER-TOLEDO, INC.004051925710104/26/2017
110.00 MME MEMBERSHIP DUES-STUHLDREHERMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL EXECUTIVES015381925810104/26/2017
218.20 EMPLOYMENT AD - BLDG DEPT CLERKMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE004201925910104/26/2017

2,500.00 CLIENT FEE 2ND QUARTER 2017MIDDLE MICHIGAN DEVELOPMENT CORP004371926010104/26/2017
21.08 SILASTIC TUBINGNORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES004941926110104/26/2017

148.72 DITCH #2 AERATOR 3NORTHERN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY004971926210104/26/2017
213.09 DITCH # 2 AERATOR #3

12,384.32 DITCH #2 AERATOR #3
59.59 AERATOR # 3 

12,805.72 

45.00 COFFEE BREWER - QUARTERLY RENTALSHAY WATER CO/CUSTOM COFFEE SERV012931926310104/26/2017
171.21 WELL SITE SHOP PAINTSHERWIN WILLIAMS005971926410104/26/2017
20.00 FLX MEDICAL REIMB. KIMBERLY SMITH006011926510104/26/2017

430.00 SECONDARY TREATMENT MOTOR BEARINGSSTU'S ELECTRIC MOTOR006291926610104/26/2017



CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 2/2Page: 04/20/2017 11:54 AM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

CHECK DATE FROM 04/13/2017 - 04/26/2017

AmountDescriptionVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

194.45 PHONE BILL 4/15/17 TO 5/14/17WINN TELECOM007231926710104/26/2017
2,093.58 ISABELLA WELL SITE GENERATOR REPAIRWOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS012461926810104/26/2017

101 TOTALS:

36,819.63 Total of 29 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
36,819.63 Total of 29 Checks:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 1/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

92.00 280,614.68 305,000.00 301,614.13 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX101-000-402.000
0.00 0.00 (3,000.00)(837.26)PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS-MTT101-000-402.001
0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,083.81 PILOT TAX101-000-402.002
0.00 0.00 (1,000.00)(2,103.68)PRIOR YEARS PROPERTY TAXES101-000-402.100
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 922.30 DELQ PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES101-000-420.000
0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,548.50 MOBILE HOME PARK TAX101-000-425.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 (823.29)INTEREST ON TAXES101-000-445.000
0.00 0.00 4,000.00 21,236.26 3% OR 4% PENALTY ON TAX101-000-446.000

70.29 101,919.67 145,000.00 147,587.97 ADMIN FEE-PROPERTY TAX101-000-447.000
0.00 0.00 (300.00)(586.88)ADMIN FEES-REFUNDS MTT BOR101-000-447.001
0.00 0.00 7,765.00 7,765.00 ADMIN FEE-STATE EDUC TAX(SET)101-000-447.050
0.00 0.00 0.00 (33.86)ADMIN FEE-PRIOR YEARS101-000-447.100
0.00 0.00 79,900.00 79,670.85 CABLE TV101-000-475.000
6.43 4,823.91 75,000.00 70,873.93 BUILDING PERMITS101-000-476.000

93.77 74,075.00 79,000.00 78,556.50 RENTAL INSPECTION FEES101-000-477.000
100.00 1.50 0.00 4.00 DOG LICENSE REVENUE101-000-478.000

6.49 2,595.00 40,000.00 10,795.00 ZONING PERMITS101-000-479.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,061.94 STATE AID REVENUE101-000-573.000
0.00 0.00 1,017,548.00 1,030,739.00 STATE REVENUE SHARING101-000-574.000
0.88 96.25 11,000.00 11,748.55 LIQUOR STATE REVENUE SHARING101-000-574.100
0.00 0.00 7,700.00 7,749.49 METRO ANNUAL MAINT. FEE101-000-574.200

100.00 125.00 0.00 875.00 CONSTR PLAN REVIEW FEES101-000-609.000
40.00 200.00 500.00 500.00 LAND DIVISIONS101-000-628.000
0.00 0.00 500.00 1,345.63 WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES101-000-630.000

16.28 244.20 1,500.00 1,088.67 FINES & FORFEITURES101-000-655.000
61.77 6,177.33 10,000.00 21,706.74 INTEREST EARNED101-000-665.000
15.00 750.00 5,000.00 6,040.00 RENT - JAMESON HALL101-000-667.000
50.67 760.00 1,500.00 1,360.00 RENT - McDONALD PARK PAVILION101-000-667.100
21.33 160.00 750.00 420.00 RENT - JAMESON PAVILION101-000-667.200
100.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 LEASES101-000-667.300

0.00 0.00 1,000.00 14,241.91 OTHER REVENUE101-000-671.000
34.64 5,195.64 15,000.00 21,918.85 REVENUE-STREET LIGHTS SPEC ASSESS101-000-672.400
0.00 0.00 500.00 6,500.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE(DISPOSAL)OF ASSETS101-000-673.000

26.43 478,638.18 1,811,263.00 1,848,469.06 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
22.01 14,960.82 67,981.00 81,776.39 TRUSTEES101
17.11 3,493.49 20,418.00 31,048.17 SUPERVISOR171
11.71 9,262.28 79,079.00 51,977.17 TWP MANAGER172
18.67 28,932.15 154,945.00 142,513.58 ACCOUNTING/GEN ADMIN191
15.15 5,832.12 38,506.00 50,728.93 CLERK215
14.00 7,697.46 55,000.00 35,112.67 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY228
0.00 0.00 0.00 4,939.70 BOARD OF REVIEW247

14.11 5,447.97 38,606.00 31,887.39 TREASURER253
21.45 44,627.00 208,070.00 216,986.11 ASSESSOR257
0.00 0.00 9,100.00 28,365.59 ELECTIONS262

27.28 18,331.77 67,200.00 53,012.15 TWP HALL & GROUNDS265
29.76 12,200.89 41,000.00 27,023.85 LEGAL/ATTORNEY266
0.00 0.00 0.00 10,760.94 LIQUOR CONTROL330

18.85 47,779.24 253,440.00 109,676.11 BUILDING371
0.00 0.00 0.00 51,946.68 ZONING372
0.00 0.00 0.00 118,430.81 RENTAL INSPECTIONS373
4.50 30,676.55 681,950.00 446,212.41 PUBLIC WORKS441

14.07 27,697.67 196,843.00 19,193.51 PLANNING721
0.00 0.00 0.00 3,140.82 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS722

27.20 48,798.67 179,406.00 117,344.70 PARKS & RECREATION751
0.00 0.00 47,000.00 44,321.13 CAPITAL OUTLAY901

14.30 305,738.08 2,138,544.00 1,676,398.81 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

52.83 172,900.10 (327,281.00)172,070.25 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

14.30 305,738.08 2,138,544.00 1,676,398.81 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
26.43 478,638.18 1,811,263.00 1,848,469.06 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 2/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND
Revenues

92.77 561,237.27 605,000.00 603,580.60 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAX206-000-402.000
0.00 0.00 (500.00)(1,686.96)PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS-MTT206-000-402.001
0.00 0.00 0.00 6,167.61 PILOT TAX206-000-402.002
0.00 0.00 0.00 (39.04)PRIOR YEARS PROPERTY TAXES206-000-402.100
0.00 0.00 500.00 989.61 DELQ PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES206-000-420.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 58.72 INTEREST ON TAXES206-000-445.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 2,123.88 STATE AID REVENUE206-000-573.000
0.00 0.00 60,775.00 60,775.00 FIRE PROTECTION - EDDA206-000-600.200
0.00 0.00 37,300.00 37,316.28 FIRE PROTECTION - WDDA206-000-600.300

43.09 1,938.97 4,500.00 7,329.87 INTEREST EARNED206-000-665.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 6,347.24 REVENUE-STATE REIMBURSEMENT206-000-671.100

79.59 563,176.24 707,575.00 722,962.81 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
50.00 342,000.00 684,000.00 669,300.00 FIRE DEPARTMENT336

50.00 342,000.00 684,000.00 669,300.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

938.18 221,176.24 23,575.00 53,662.81 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

50.00 342,000.00 684,000.00 669,300.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
79.59 563,176.24 707,575.00 722,962.81 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 3/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - EDDA OPERATING
Revenues

0.00 0.00 430,000.00 426,383.74 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX248-000-402.000
0.00 0.00 (5,000.00)(1,872.89)PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS-MTT248-000-402.001
0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 PRIOR YEARS PROPERTY TAXES248-000-402.100
0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,149.37 DELQ PERSONAL PROPERTY CAPT248-000-420.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 70,565.75 STATE AID REVENUE248-000-573.000

36.94 369.44 1,000.00 1,883.75 INTEREST EARNED248-000-665.000
0.00 0.00 200.00 101.09 OTHER REVENUE248-000-671.000

0.09 369.44 428,450.00 499,210.81 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
14.47 9,596.74 66,300.00 560,354.31 NONE000
0.00 0.00 60,775.00 60,775.00 FIRE DEPARTMENT336

7.55 9,596.74 127,075.00 621,129.31 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3.06 (9,227.30)301,375.00 (121,918.50)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

7.55 9,596.74 127,075.00 621,129.31 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.09 369.44 428,450.00 499,210.81 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - EDDA OPERATING:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 4/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 250 - WDDA OPERATING
Revenues

0.00 0.00 460,000.00 457,662.49 CURRENT PROPERTY TAX250-000-402.000
0.00 0.00 (4,000.00)(8,337.74)PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS-MTT250-000-402.001
0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 PRIOR YEARS PROPERTY TAXES250-000-402.100
0.00 0.00 300.00 641.12 DELQ PERSONAL PROPERTY CAPT250-000-420.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 6,837.57 STATE AID REVENUE250-000-573.000

27.64 414.65 1,500.00 1,734.91 INTEREST EARNED250-000-665.000

0.09 414.65 458,050.00 458,538.35 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 0.00 300,500.00 0.00 NONE000
0.00 0.00 37,300.00 37,316.28 FIRE DEPARTMENT336
0.00 0.00 265,000.00 220,000.00 TRANSFER OUT996

0.00 0.00 602,800.00 257,316.28 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.29 414.65 (144,750.00)201,222.07 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 602,800.00 257,316.28 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.09 414.65 458,050.00 458,538.35 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 250 - WDDA OPERATING:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 5/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 288 - TRIBAL 2% GRANTS FUND
Revenues

100.00 14.38 0.00 931.01 INTEREST EARNED288-000-665.000

100.00 14.38 0.00 931.01 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 0.00 0.00 570,125.00 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT728

0.00 0.00 0.00 570,125.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 14.38 0.00 (569,193.99)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 0.00 570,125.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 14.38 0.00 931.01 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 288 - TRIBAL 2% GRANTS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 6/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND
Revenues

0.00 0.00 100,000.00 210,002.73 HOOKUP FEE590-000-456.000
25.09 317,487.12 1,265,581.00 1,253,544.84 SERVICE590-000-627.000
0.00 0.00 4,500.00 (2,341.07)DELINQUENT SEWER590-000-627.100
0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200.00 INSPECTIONS590-000-628.000

69.71 8,714.17 12,500.00 30,349.61 FINES & FORFEITURES590-000-655.000
77.83 4,669.67 6,000.00 17,841.79 INTEREST EARNED590-000-665.000
100.00 158.66 0.00 637.71 INTEREST EARNED - BOND RESERVES590-000-665.003

0.00 0.00 7,101.00 26,051.18 INTEREST EARNED - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS590-000-669.001
25.17 270,884.51 1,076,087.00 1,061,282.67 DEBT RETIREMENT590-000-670.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,050.00 DEBT SERVICE (SEWER 1) CITY ANNEX590-000-670.100
6.17 30.83 500.00 15,295.83 OTHER REVENUE590-000-671.000

66.45 14,813.79 22,292.00 0.00 REVENUE-SPECIAL ASSESS590-000-672.500
0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE(DISPOSAL)OF ASSETS590-000-673.000

24.71 616,758.75 2,495,811.00 2,614,915.29 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
9.14 104,930.27 1,147,524.00 429,139.89 O & M EXPENDITURES529
0.00 0.00 0.00 53,930.01 SEWER LIFT STATIONS530
0.00 0.00 0.00 12,298.92 VEHICLE EXPENDITURES588

18.79 173,668.91 924,084.00 766,642.11 WWTP611
15.68 45,328.13 289,134.00 303,537.27 DEBT SERVICE906
0.00 0.00 700,000.00 633,919.88 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE960

10.58 323,927.31 3,060,742.00 2,199,468.08 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

51.83 292,831.44 (564,931.00)415,447.21 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

10.58 323,927.31 3,060,742.00 2,199,468.08 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
24.71 616,758.75 2,495,811.00 2,614,915.29 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF UNION 7/7Pag
e:

04/20/2017 01:58 PM
User: SHERRIE
DB: Union

PERIOD ENDING 03/31/2017
% Fiscal Year Completed: 24.66

% BDGT
USED

YTD BALANCE
03/31/2017

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2017

AMENDED BUDGET

END BALANCE
12/31/2016

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

24.80 303,271.47 1,222,804.00 1,337,229.27 WATER SALES591-000-450.000
0.00 0.00 2,500.00 3,132.13 BULK WATER SALES591-000-450.100

34.80 435.00 1,250.00 1,755.00 FINAL READ591-000-450.200
28.67 430.00 1,500.00 2,550.00 TURN-OFF591-000-450.300
0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,946.96 LATERALS591-000-452.000
0.00 0.00 30,000.00 44,474.25 BENEFIT FEES591-000-454.000
1.00 500.00 50,000.00 89,831.40 REVENUE-HOOK UP FEE591-000-459.000
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 REVENUE-REPLACEMENT METERS591-000-479.000
0.00 0.00 1,250.00 1,800.00 INSPECTIONS591-000-628.000

43.37 5,420.86 12,500.00 19,885.66 FINES & FORFEITURES591-000-655.000
47.21 4,721.44 10,000.00 17,781.61 INTEREST EARNED591-000-665.000
20.56 8,223.84 40,000.00 40,846.09 LEASES - TOWER RENTAL591-000-667.300
0.00 0.00 500.00 16,221.52 INTEREST EARNED-SPEC ASSESS591-000-669.001

458.38 4,583.84 1,000.00 3,433.86 OTHER REVENUE591-000-671.000
112.48 10,890.18 9,682.00 0.00 REVENUE-SPECIAL ASSESS591-000-672.500

0.00 0.00 500.00 (4,738.03)GAIN/LOSS ON SALE(DISPOSAL)OF ASSETS591-000-673.000

24.37 338,476.63 1,388,986.00 1,580,149.72 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
11.99 196,689.72 1,640,453.00 940,652.53 WATER O & M536
100.00 94.60 0.00 51,671.36 TREATMENT PLANT538

0.00 0.00 0.00 17,380.15 WATER TOWER539
0.00 0.00 0.00 11,656.16 VEHICLE EXPENDITURES588

48.12 31,415.00 65,279.00 66,755.41 DEBT SERVICE906
0.00 0.00 300,000.00 327,133.10 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE960

11.38 228,199.32 2,005,732.00 1,415,248.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

17.88 110,277.31 (616,746.00)164,901.01 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

11.38 228,199.32 2,005,732.00 1,415,248.71 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
24.37 338,476.63 1,388,986.00 1,580,149.72 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

59.33 788,386.82 (1,328,758.00)316,190.86 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

14.03 1,209,461.45 8,618,893.00 7,408,986.19 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
27.40 1,997,848.27 7,290,135.00 7,725,177.05 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



NOTE: CHECK TOTAL FOR TRANSFER

Gross Payroll 47,831.79$         
Employer Share Med 687.70                 
Employer Share SS 2,940.54              
SUI 125.16                 
Pension-Employer Portion 3,177.16              
Workers' Comp 485.22                 
Life/LTD -                        
Dental -                        
Health Care -                        
Cobra/Flex Administration -                        
PCORI Fee -                        

Total Transfer to Payroll Checking 55,247.57$         

NOTE: PAYROLL TRANSFER NEEDED

General Fund 19,391.12$         
EDDA
WDDA
Sewer Fund 20,421.50            
Water Fund 15,434.95            

Total To Transfer from Pooled Savings 55,247.57$         

TOTAL TRANSFER FROM POOLED SAVINGS TO PAYROLL ACCOUNT

CONFIRMATION NUMBER: ___________________     DATE: ___________

ACH NUMBER:  _____________________________     TIME: ___________

Charter Township of Union
Payroll

CHECK DATE: April 20, 2017
PPE: April 15, 2017



Category Code Description Twp Resp City

Fire 100 Fire, Other

111 Building Fire 1

112 Fires in Structures other than a Building

113 Cooking Fire

114 Chimney or Flue Fire

116 Fuel Burner/Boiler Malfunction

131 Passenger Vehicle Fire 1

132 Road freight or transport vehicle fire

136 Self-propelled Motor Home/Recreational 

137 Camper or Recreational Vehicle (RV) Fire

138 Off-road vehicle of heavy equipment fire

140 Natural Vegetation Fire

143 Grass/Brush fire

150 Outside Rubbish Fire, other

151 Outside Rubbish Fire, trash or waste fire

154 Dumpster Fire 2

160 Special Outside Fire, Other 

Overpressure Rupture, (No Fire) 251 Excessive heat, scorch burns with no fire

231 Chemical reaction rupture of process vessel

Rescue & EMS Incident 300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 1

311 Medical Assist to EMS Crew 4 19 4

321 EMS Call excluding Veh. Accident 3

322 Motor Vehicle Acc. W/ Injuries

323 Motor Vehicle Acc/Pedestrian

324 Motor Vehicle Acc. W/no Injuries 2 4

331 Lock-In (If lock out use 551)

342 Search for Person in Water

352 Extrication of Victim (s) from vehicle

353 Remove Victim from Stalled Elevator

360 Water & Ice-related Rescue, Other

361 Swimming /recreational water area rescue

3811 Technical rescue standby

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 400 Hazard condition other

410 Combustible/Flammable Gas Condition

411 Gasoline or Other Flammable Spill

412 Gas Leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 2

413 Oil of Combustible Liquid Spill

421 Chemical Hazard (No Spill or Leak)

423 Refrigeration Leak

424 Carbon Monoxide Incident

440 Electric Wiring/Equipment Problem 1

441 Heat from Short Circuit

442 Overheated Motor

443 Breakdown of Light Ballast

Mount Pleasant Fire Department

Fire Experience Report For Union Township/City of Mt. Pleasant

Period -  April 3, 2017 through April 9, 2017



444 Power Line Down

445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment

451 Biological hazard, confirmed or suspected

461 Building or Structure Weakened or Collapsed

462 Aircraft Standby

463 Vehicle Accident, general cleanup

480 Attempted burning, illegal action, other

4441 Utility Line Down 2

Service Call 500 Service Call - Other 1

510 Person in Distress

511 Lock-out

512 Ring or Jewelry removal

520 Water Problem, Other

521 Water Evacuation

522 Water of Steam Leak

531 Smoke or Odor Removal 1

542 Animal Rescue

552 Police Matter

553 Public Service

561 Unauthorized Burning 1

571 Cover assignment, standby, moveup

Good Intent Call 600 Good Intent Call, Other

611 Dispatched and Cancelled en route 1 2

622 No Incident Found on Arrival

631 Authorized controlled burning

650 Steam, gas mistaken for smoke, 

651 Smoke Scare, Odor of Smoke

661 EMS call, party already transported

671 HazMat Investigation, no HazMat

False Alarm & False Call 700 False Alarm, Other

710 Malicious, mischievous false call, other 1 2

715 Local Alarm System, Malicious False Alarm

721 Bomb Scare - No Bomb

730 System Malfunction

731 Sprinkler activation due to malfunction

732 Extinguishing System Activation - Malfunction

733 Smoke Det. Activation - Malfunction 1 2

734 Heat Detector Activation - Malfunction

735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

736 CO detector activation due to malfunction

740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, other

741 Sprinkler activation, no fire 1 2

743 Smoke Det. Activation - Unintentional 1 2

744 Detector activation, no fire 1 2 1

745 Alarm System Act. - Unintentional 1 2

746 Carbon Monoxide Activation, NO CO

Severe Weather 813 Wind Storm,Tornado/Hurricane Assessment



Special Incident Type 911 Citizen Complaint

9003 Affidavit Issued

Total Response for Union Twp/City 14 39 19

Emergency - MPFD

Emergency - MPFD Secondary to MMR

Non - Emergency



Category Code Description Twp Resp City

Fire 100 Fire, Other

111 Building Fire

112 Fires in Structures other than a Building

113 Cooking Fire 1

114 Chimney or Flue Fire

116 Fuel Burner/Boiler Malfunction

131 Passenger Vehicle Fire

132 Road freight or transport vehicle fire

136 Self-propelled Motor Home/Recreational 

137 Camper or Recreational Vehicle (RV) Fire

138 Off-road vehicle of heavy equipment fire

140 Natural Vegetation Fire

143 Grass/Brush fire 1 17

150 Outside Rubbish Fire, other

151 Outside Rubbish Fire, trash or waste fire 1

154 Dumpster Fire

160 Special Outside Fire, Other 

Overpressure Rupture, (No Fire) 251 Excessive heat, scorch burns with no fire

231 Chemical reaction rupture of process vessel

Rescue & EMS Incident 300 Rescue, EMS incident, other

311 Medical Assist to EMS Crew 3 17

321 EMS Call excluding Veh. Accident

322 Motor Vehicle Acc. W/ Injuries 1 3

323 Motor Vehicle Acc/Pedestrian

324 Motor Vehicle Acc. W/no Injuries

331 Lock-In (If lock out use 551)

342 Search for Person in Water

352 Extrication of Victim (s) from vehicle

353 Remove Victim from Stalled Elevator

360 Water & Ice-related Rescue, Other

361 Swimming /recreational water area rescue

3811 Technical rescue standby

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 400 Hazard condition other

410 Combustible/Flammable Gas Condition

411 Gasoline or Other Flammable Spill

412 Gas Leak (natural gas or LPG)

413 Oil of Combustible Liquid Spill

421 Chemical Hazard (No Spill or Leak)

423 Refrigeration Leak

424 Carbon Monoxide Incident 1 2

440 Electric Wiring/Equipment Problem

441 Heat from Short Circuit

442 Overheated Motor

443 Breakdown of Light Ballast

Mount Pleasant Fire Department

Fire Experience Report For Union Township/City of Mt. Pleasant

Period -  April 10, 2017 through April 16, 2017



444 Power Line Down

445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment

451 Biological hazard, confirmed or suspected

461 Building or Structure Weakened or Collapsed

462 Aircraft Standby

463 Vehicle Accident, general cleanup

480 Attempted burning, illegal action, other

4441 Utility Line Down

Service Call 500 Service Call - Other

510 Person in Distress

511 Lock-out

512 Ring or Jewelry removal

520 Water Problem, Other

521 Water Evacuation

522 Water of Steam Leak

531 Smoke or Odor Removal 1

542 Animal Rescue

552 Police Matter

553 Public Service

561 Unauthorized Burning 1 2

571 Cover assignment, standby, moveup

Good Intent Call 600 Good Intent Call, Other

611 Dispatched and Cancelled en route 1 2

622 No Incident Found on Arrival

631 Authorized controlled burning

650 Steam, gas mistaken for smoke, 

651 Smoke Scare, Odor of Smoke

661 EMS call, party already transported

671 HazMat Investigation, no HazMat

False Alarm & False Call 700 False Alarm, Other

710 Malicious, mischievous false call, other

715 Local Alarm System, Malicious False Alarm

721 Bomb Scare - No Bomb

730 System Malfunction

731 Sprinkler activation due to malfunction

732 Extinguishing System Activation - Malfunction

733 Smoke Det. Activation - Malfunction

734 Heat Detector Activation - Malfunction

735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction

736 CO detector activation due to malfunction

740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, other

741 Sprinkler activation, no fire

743 Smoke Det. Activation - Unintentional

744 Detector activation, no fire

745 Alarm System Act. - Unintentional 2

746 Carbon Monoxide Activation, NO CO

Severe Weather 813 Wind Storm,Tornado/Hurricane Assessment



Special Incident Type 911 Citizen Complaint

9003 Affidavit Issued

Total Response for Union Twp/City 8 43 5

Emergency - MPFD

Emergency - MPFD Secondary to MMR

Non - Emergency



 

 

To:   Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Mark Stuhldreher, Township Manager 
Subject: Policy Governance Review  
Date:  April 19, 2017 
 
Policy Review:  1.1-1.6 Global Ends 
Type of Review:  Internal 
Review Interval: Annual 
Review Month:  April, 2017 
 
Listed below are the six (6) Global Ends along with the significant activities that occurred throughout 

2016 that helped to enhance the respective Ends.  This list is not all inclusive as all activities of the 

organization are designed to contribute positively to one of the Ends.  The staff and elected officials are 

to be commended for their hard work, dedication, and commitment to serving the citizens of Union 

Township. 

1.1 Community Life 

 Continued 2% contribution of franchise fees to MMACC (2016 - $53,113.89) to provide 
Government and Public Access TV to residents including public announcement slides and events 
listed on channel 191 in Isabella County and Township Board, Planning Commission, ZBA, and 
DDA meetings available on channel 188 and online in Isabella County.  This also provides for 
studio space, editing equipment, staff support,  production equipment, and training to township 
residents so they can produce and broadcast their interest and art via broadcast media and on-
demand/on-line programming 

 All owners found in violation of the Ordinance were sent a letter informing them of their 

violation and were given time to come into compliance before the township took action.  

 Hired and trained CMU student as an accounting intern 
 

1.2 Prosperity 

 Planning Commission began review and update to the Township’s existing Master Plan.  

 Began paying MasterCard statement electronically effective early saving  time, postage, check 
stock, printer supplies and handling costs 

 Automated approx 800 mortgage company tax payments receipting, saving cashier time. 

 Successfully applied to the State of Michigan for tax increment finance reimbursement for lost 
personal property tax revenues for the East and West DDA.   The Township received $70,500 for 
the East DDA and $6,800 for the West DDA. 

 Successfully applied for fire protection reimbursement from the State of Michigan receiving 
$6,300 for fire protection on State owned buildings in the Township, not received the previous 
year 

 Achieved a “clean” audit for fiscal year 2015, provided financial information free from material 
misstatements 



 

1.3 Safety 

 Purchase of a 2016 Ford Truck to replace unsafe vehicle being utilized by township staff in the 
township’s parks department (McDonald Park & Jameson Park)  

 Continued regular safety training for Township Utility and Parks personnel:  2016 training – 
MIOSHA Compliance Training, Confined Space Training, Respiratory Fit Test, CPR Certification, 
and Hazard Communication   

 Uniform shirts changed from existing grey/blue to safety colored t-shirts and sweatshirts for 
Township Public Works and Parks staff   

 Public Works Emergency Response Plan updated in January of 2016 and submitted to MDEQ in 
accordance to State of Michigan requirements 

 Risk control site visit conducted in coordination with annual renewal of liability insurance policy  

 Township Planner, PC, and ZBA members attended trainings for planning and zoning issues.  

 Rental Department annually inspects approximately 3,640 to verify compliance with Township 
Housing Ordinance. 

 

1.4 Health 

 Cross Connection inspections conducted by township water operators of 137 commercial 
properties.  Backflow testing of 406 commercial and residential backflow devices conducted by 
State of Michigan Certified Backflow Preventer Testers.  Annual Cross Connection Report 
submitted on time and in accordance with State of Michigan Cross Connection requirements 

 Industrial Pretreatment (IPP) Inspections conducted by WWTP Superintendent of new and 
existing properties  

 All water samples taken in accordance with State of Michigan sampling requirements and 
Township Sample Site Plan.  All results are under regulated limits. 

 All WWTP samples taken in accordance with State of Michigan and EPA NPDES Permit Discharge 
schedule.  All results under permitted discharge limits 

 WWTP lab inspected and recertified in accordance with all State of Michigan requirements on  

 EPA Compliance Inspection of WWTP completed in accordance with EPA NPDES Permit   

 MDEQ Compliance Inspection of WWTP done in accordance with MDEQ NPDES Permit 

 Monthly MOR’s and DMR’s submitted on-time and in accordance to State of Michigan 
requirements by WWTP Superintendent, Mike Dearing & Chief Water Operator, Shawn McBride 

 Consumer Confidence Report completed and distributed to all water customers EPA and MDEQ 
requirements 

 Water and Sewer Maintenance & Capital Projects and Purchases which enhance customer 
service,  safety,  and prolong the useful life of the water and sewer systems: 

 Manhole Rehabilitation (Township and EDDA – 26 manholes) 
 Pump Station #14 Generator Installation (formerly located at Pump Station #3) 
 Pump Station #1 – Bypass Manhole Rehabilitation  
 Clarifier Painting – WWTP 
 Pump Station #19 – Pump Repair/Replacement 
 Aerator #4 – WWTP repair 
 Impeller Repair – High Service Pump #1 – Isabella Well Site 



 Various repairs done to all well sites as  
 Server Upgrade – mirrored servers installed at Township Hall and Isabella Well 

site to enhance operation capabilities as well as alarming and control 
capabilities of water and sewer facilities.   

 All site plans for new development required to show installation of sidewalks which reduced the 
number of sidewalk waivers  

 

1.5 Natural Environment 

 Real-Time Intelligence Pilot Study completed at the Isabella Water Treatment Plant and Waste 
Water Treatment Plant in partnership with Consumers Energy and Aquaasight.   The focus of this 
study was to identify potential operations and equipment components that are not operating at 
their optimum efficiency and make energy saving cost effective changes that would result in 
lower energy consumption and energy cost. Several of the findings from the studies have been 
implemented which will result in long term energy consumption and expense savings 

 Replacement of seventeen outside lights at WWTP to energy efficient LED lighting under 
Consumers Energy Business Energy Efficiency Program 

 Land application of WWTP sludge completed in late September and early October of 2016 in 
accordance with State of Michigan Biosolids Program  
 

1.6 Commerce 

 Review, approval, and inspection of water and sewer installation per Township Specifications 

and Ten State Standards of following new development projects: 

 Mid Michigan Health Park  

 Holiday Inn 

 Central Concrete 

 Plaza Corp 

 Lexington Ridge 

 Required developers to have approval of all outside agencies before the Planning commission 

conducts a site plan review.  

 

Other 

 Over $1,000,000 in capital improvements completed throughout the Township.  All areas of the 
Township were impacted including water production and sewer treatment facilities, roads, 
parks, data processing and other miscellaneous projects. 



 

 

To:   Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Mark Stuhldreher, Township Manager 
Subject: Policy Governance Review  
Date:  April 19, 2017 
 
Policy Review:  2.5 Financial Condition and Activities 
Type of Review:  Internal 
Review Interval: Quarterly 
Review Month:  April, 2017 
 
Policy Wording 
With respect to the actual, ongoing financial condition and activities, the Township Management Team 
shall not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or a material deviation of actual 
expenditures from board priorities established in End policies. 
 
Manager Interpretation 
Township Manager interprets this policy to indicate that there will be no expenditures made or incurred 

that will exceed the expenditures budgeted for that current year unless it is an emergency purchase as 

outlined in 2.5.6.  The manager shall not make a single purchase or commitment (unless it falls under 

2.5.6) of greater than $10,000 or inform the board of purchases over $5,000 unless the purchase is for 

materials or services needed for normal operations of township facilities. 

Furthermore, all tax payments to other governmental entities will be paid according to state statute, 
payroll will be paid bi-weekly, and accounts payable invoices will be processed and ready for board 
approval as soon as they are received, verified, and coded for payment. 
 
Justification of Reasonability of Interpretation 
The interpretations are reasonable in that when the budget is approved by the Board of Trustees, it is 
left to the management team to operate within the guidelines established and to follow all state and 
federal statutes.  The Township Board is to function as a policy making body and the management team 
is to function as implementer of that policy as indicated in the approved budget. 
 
Data 

 Budget to actual reports and cash flow reports were provided to the Board of Trustees on a 
monthly basis 

 Accounts payable checks were reviewed monthly by the Board of Trustees 

 All property tax receipts were disbursed to the respective taxing authority per state statute 
 
Compliance 
The Township Management Team is in compliance with the policy as stated.   



Page 1 of 2 

 

Policy:  2.5.10 Cash Flow Ratio 

Type:  Internal 

Occurrence: Monthly 

Date:  March 2017 

 

Policy Wording 

 He or she shall not fail to maintain an adequate level of cash flow. 

 

Manager Interpretation 

 Manager interprets this policy to indicate that cash availability for the major funds 

(not including debt retirement or special revenue funds) should not fall below a certain 

threshold.  The threshold amount used for the data and compliance sections of this policy is 

as follows:  

General Fund – 4 months of budgeted expenditures for the current fiscal year  

Fire Fund – 3 of the quarterly contract payments due to the City of Mt. Pleasant for fire 

protection services  

East and West DDA Funds – 4 months of normal operational expenditures  

Water and Sewer Funds – 2 months of budgeted expenses for the current fiscal year   

 

Justification for reasonability 

 Cash flow for this report is defined as “liquid cash reserves held by a bank or credit 

union that can be accessed and utilized on an as needed basis.”   

  The Township Manager has determined that 4 months of cash reserves is needed for 

the General Fund because property taxes are collected in December, January, and February, 

and that accounts for 20% of the revenues for the General Fund.  State Revenue Sharing 

(60% of GF revenues) is received semi monthly thereby giving the township an influx of cash 

for operations. 

 For the Fire Fund, 3 quarterly contract payments are required to meet the obligations 

of the July, October, and January payments prior to the collection of the property tax in the 

first quarter of each year 

 For the East and West DDA districts 4 months of cash reserves are needed to meet 

the normal operations of the East and West Districts.  Project costs are not included because 

they are not reoccurring and will be based on the tax capture amount that will be deposited 

in the respective funds during the first quarter of each year. 

 For the Water and Sewer Funds 2 months of cash reserves are needed because 80% of 

the water and sewer bills are paid in the first two months of each quarter.  Bills are sent in 

January, April, July, and October of each year. 

 Data used from this report is gathered from the BS&A General Ledger system – 

report- “Cash Summary by Account for the Charter Township of Union” and is based on the 

reconciled cash at the end of the previous month. 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

Policy 2.5.10 continued 

 

Data 

Fund   Current cash  Amount required for compliance Compliant? 

 

GF Total  $ 3,250,141 

(Restricted-Const) $     (21,025) 

GF Unrestricted $ 3,229,116   $ 712,848    Yes 

 

Fire Fund  $  1,316,925 

(Fire Truck Reserve) $   (400,000) 

FF Unrestricted $    916,925   $ 513,000    Yes 

 

EDDA   $   751,800       

  Projects  $          -0- 

EDDA Unrestricted $   751,800   $  58,650    Yes 

 

WDDA  $    848,010        

  Projects  $          -0- 

WDDA Unrestricted $    848,010   $  85,772    Yes 

 

Sewer Fund  $ 3,158,907    

   2004 Bond Reserve  $ (175,871) 

   2011 Bond Reserve  $   (35,000) 

   2011 Bond RRI Reserve $   (71,435) 

   2013 Bond Reserve  $   (80,000) 

   2013 Bond RRI Reserve $   (14,028) 

 

Sewer Fund Net $ 2,782,573   $ 510,123    Yes 

 

Water Fund  $ 2,835,243   $ 334,288     Yes 

 

Compliance 

 

All funds are found to be in compliance. 



 

 

To:   Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Mark Stuhldreher, Township Manager 
Subject: Policy Governance Review  
Date:  April 19, 2017 
 
Policy Review:  2.6 Asset Protection 
Type of Review:  Internal 
Review Interval: Annual 
Review Month:  April, 2017 
 
Policy Wording 
Township Management shall not allow corporate assets to be unprotected, inadequately maintained or 
unnecessarily risked. 
 
Manager Interpretation 
Township Manager interprets this policy to indicate that the Township Board of Trustees wants to 
ensure that the township:  1) has adequate theft and casualty insurance, 2) that there is sufficient 
maintenance on equipment, 3) that the organization is not exposed to claims of liability or operate 
without proper risk management toward continuous operations, 4) that funds are accounted for 
according to auditor’s standards, 5) that the township, when making an asset purchase ($5,000 or 
more), ensures that proper procurement practices have been followed with the exception of sole source 
vendors and emergency purchases, 6) that the organization’s public image is not endangered or that the 
township fails to operate or seek to operate in a best practices manner. 
 
Justification of Reasonability of Interpretation 
The Township Manager’s interpretation utilizes the sub units of the policy that is clearly written and 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Data 

 Township assets are currently insured under the Michigan Township Association PAR Plan which 
is updated annually 

 Vehicle Fleet is regularly maintained and/or replaced to ensure employee safety. 

 Water and Wastewater infrastructures and equipment are maintained on a regular basis.  For 
example, considerable money was spent on manhole rehabilitation in the sewer system in 2016 
as part of a larger manhole rehabilitation plan 

 Treasurer set up a night deposit system with the banking institution so the staff can ensure 
deposits are made daily and deposits are not left on the premises after hours. 

 Non-emergency asset purchases are made following a procurement process that requires board 
approval 

  Computer backups are performed daily and testing is performed a few times per year to ensure 
prevention of information loss or significant damage 

 Auditors are contacted on a regular basis when questions arise related to proper internal 
controls 



 Cash is invested in appropriate ways to promote safety and soundness along with maximum 
return on investment 

 Finance Director maintains list of assets that is verified by auditors 

 Finance Director attends training regularly through the Michigan Government Finance Officers 
Association to seek out advice in best practices and continuous improvements in financial 
operations 

 
Compliance 
The Township Management Team is in compliance with the policy as stated.   

































































1 | P a g e  

 

REQUEST FOR TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION 
 

TO: Board of Trustees  DATE: April 19, 2017 

FROM: Mark Stuhldreher, Township Manager  DATE FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 04/26/2017 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Board of Trustees annual review of Board Governance Policy No. 3.3 
      
 

Current Action        X             Emergency _______      
       

Funds Budgeted:  If Yes ___ __   Account #                                   No _______   N/A ____X___ 
 

Finance Approval _________MDS__________________________ 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Board Governance Policy was originally adopted in 2010 with subsequent amendments in 2013 and 2014.  
The purpose of the Policy is to assist the Board of Trustees in the execution of their duties as a policy making 
body.  Through the articulation of various policies within the totality of the document, the Board of Trustees is 
encouraged to focus on long term organizational outputs and the discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities. 
 
Certain policies, such as Policy 3.3 (Board Members Code of Conduct), are to be reviewed and monitored for 
compliance on an annual basis.  In this case, the annual review was to occur in the month of March.  
 
Attached to this memo is an evaluation form that can be used for the review/discussion of Policy No. 3.3. 
 
Board Policy 3.3 - Board Members Code of Conduct 
The board commits itself and its members to ethical, businesslike, and lawful conduct, including proper use of 
authority and appropriate decorum when acting as board members. 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Not applicable 

 

JUSTIFICATION 

An annual review of Board Policies allows for the Board of Trustees to monitor itself regarding adherence to 
policies that apply to the Board of Trustees. 

 
PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS   

The following Board of Trustees goals are addressed in this review (From Policy 1.0: Global End) 

 Community well-being and common good 

 Prosperity through economic diversity, cultural diversity , and social diversity 

 Safety 

 Health 

 Natural environment 

 Commerce 



2 | P a g e  

 

 
COSTS 

Not applicable 
 

PROJECT TIME TABLE 

Not applicable 
 

RESOLUTION 

Not applicable 

 

 

  



3 | P a g e  

 

Policy:  3.3 Board Member Code of Conduct 

Type:  Internal 

Occurrence: Annual 

Date:  March, 2017 

 

 

Policy Wording 

 

3.3   POLICY TITLE:  BOARD Member Code of Conduct 
 

The board commits itself and its members to ethical, businesslike, and lawful conduct, including proper use of 

authority and appropriate decorum when acting as board members. 

 

 

 3.3.1 Members must have loyalty to the ownership, unconflicted by loyalties to staff, other organizations, 

and any personal interest as a consumer. 

 

 3.3.2 Members must avoid conflict of interest with respect to their fiduciary responsibility. 
 

  3.3.2.1   There will be no self-dealing or business by a member with the organization.  Members 

will annually disclose their involvements with other organizations, with vendors, or any 

associations that might be or might reasonably be seen as being a conflict. 
 

  3.3.2.2   When the board is to decide upon an issue, about which a member has an unavoidable 

conflict of interest, that member shall absent herself or himself without comment from not 

only the vote, but also from the deliberation. 

    

       A.   Exception: Where a board member has special expertise and has a conflict of 

interest, the board may choose to allow the member with the conflict to participate in 

the discussion, but not the vote. 
 

  3.3.2.3   Board members will not use their board position to obtain employment in the organization 

for themselves, family members, or close associates.   
 

 3.3.3 Board members may not attempt to exercise individual authority over the organization. 
 

3.3.3.1   Members' interaction with the Township Management or with staff must recognize the lack 

of authority vested in individuals except when explicitly board authorized. 
 

3.3.3.2    Member interaction with public, press or other entities must recognize the same limitation 

and the inability of any board member to speak for the board except to repeat explicitly 

stated board decisions. 

 

  3.3.3.2.1   When interacting with public, media or other    

 entities, Board members must recognize explicitly stated    board 

decisions. 

 

1.     The Township Supervisor is the official spokesperson for the Board and 

may delegate that role. 
2.     Board members may discuss CONTENT issues with the media but not 

personal attacks on other Board member(s).  



4 | P a g e  

 

3.     Preceding any comment to the media, board members will make it clear 

that their comments are personal opinion as an individual member of the 

board and citizen of the township and not the position of the board.  
4.     In the case of existing legal proceedings, from the point of suit filed to 

final disposition or public Board action, board members will direct media 

questions on the specific lawsuit to the Township Manager. 
 

 3.3.3.3   Except for participation in board deliberation about whether reasonable 

interpretation of board policy has been achieved by the Township Manager, 

members will not express individual judgments of performance of employees of 

the Township Manager. 

   
 

 3.3.4 Members will respect the confidentiality appropriate to issues of a sensitive nature. 
 

3.3.5 Members will be properly prepared for board deliberation. 

 

 

Use this evaluation form for discussion at the Board of Trustees Meeting on April 26, 2017,  

 

Review all sections of the policy listed and evaluate Board compliance with policy. 

 

1. Indicate item by item if you believe Yes or No if we are in strict compliance with the policy as stated?   

 

2. If you indicated that the Board is not in strict compliance with the policy as stated, please indicate what 

you notice that gives evidence that we are not in compliance? 

 

 

3. How do you think we could improve our process to be in full compliance? 

 

4. What do we need to learn or discuss in order to live by our policies more completely? 
 



1 | P a g e  

 

REQUEST FOR TOWNSHIP BOARD ACTION 
 

TO: Board of Trustees  DATE: April 19, 2017 

FROM: Mark Stuhldreher, Township Manager  DATE FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 04/26/2017 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Board of Trustees annual review of Board Governance Policy No. 3.4 
      
 

Current Action        X             Emergency _______      
       

Funds Budgeted:  If Yes ___ __   Account #                                   No _______   N/A ____X___ 
 

Finance Approval _________MDS__________________________ 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Board Governance Policy was originally adopted in 2010 with subsequent amendments in 2013 and 2014.  
The purpose of the Policy is to assist the Board of Trustees in the execution of their duties as a policy making 
body.  Through the articulation of various policies within the totality of the document, the Board of Trustees is 
encouraged to focus on long term organizational outputs and the discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities. 
 
Certain policies, such as Policy 3.4 (Agenda Planning), are to be reviewed and monitored for compliance on an 
annual basis.  In this case, the annual review was to occur in the month of March.  
 
Attached to this memo is an evaluation form that can be used for the review/discussion of Policy No. 3.4. 
 
Board Policy 3.4 – Agenda Planning 
To accomplish its job products with a governance style consistent with board policies, the board will follow an 
annual agenda which (a) completes a re-exploration of Ends policies annually and (b) continually improves board 
performance through board education and enriched input and deliberation. 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Not applicable 

 

JUSTIFICATION 

An annual review of Board Policies allows for the Board of Trustees to monitor itself regarding adherence to 
policies that apply to the Board of Trustees. 

 
PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS   

The following Board of Trustees goals are addressed in this review (From Policy 1.0: Global End) 

 Community well-being and common good 

 Prosperity through economic diversity, cultural diversity , and social diversity 

 Safety 

 Health 

 Natural environment 



2 | P a g e  

 

 Commerce 
 

COSTS 

Not applicable 
 

PROJECT TIME TABLE 

Not applicable 
 

RESOLUTION 

Not applicable 

 

 

  



3 | P a g e  

 

Policy:  3.4 Agenda Planning 

Type:  Internal 

Occurrence: Annual 

Date:  April, 2017 

 

 

Policy Wording 

 

3.4   POLICY TITLE:  Agenda Planning 
 

To accomplish its job products with a governance style consistent with board policies, the board will follow an 

annual agenda which (a) completes a re-exploration of Ends policies annually and (b) continually improves board 

performance through board education and enriched input and deliberation 

 

 

 3.4.1 The cycle will conclude each year on the last day of May so that administrative planning and 

budgeting can be based on accomplishing a one year segment of the board’s most recent statement 

of long term Ends. 

 

 3.4.2 The cycle will start in June with the board’s development of its agenda for the next year. 

   

  3.4.2.1    Consultations with selected groups in the ownership, or other methods of gaining 

ownership input will be determined and arranged in the third quarter, to be held during the 

balance of the year. 

 

  3.4.2.2    Governance education and education related to Ends determination, (e.g. 

presentations by futurists, demographers, advocacy groups, staff, etc.) will be arranged in 

the third quarter, to be held during the balance of the year. 

 

 3.4.3 Throughout the year, the board will attend to consent agenda items as expeditiously as possible. 

 

 3.4.4 Township Management monitoring will be included on the agenda if monitoring reports show  

  policy violations, or if policy criteria are to be debated. 

 

 

Use this evaluation form for discussion at the Board of Trustees Meeting on April 26, 2017,  

 

Review all sections of the policy listed and evaluate Board compliance with policy. 

 

1. Indicate item by item if you believe Yes or No if we are in strict compliance with the policy as stated?   

 

2. If you indicated that the Board is not in strict compliance with the policy as stated, please indicate what 

you notice that gives evidence that we are not in compliance? 

 

 

3. How do you think we could improve our process to be in full compliance? 

 

4. What do we need to learn or discuss in order to live by our policies more completely? 
 


	1 Agenda Board of Trustees 4-26-17
	9a EDA re-appointments
	9a1 CRC re-appointments
	10b 4-12-17 BOT minutes
	10c1 Check Register 4-26-17
	10c2 Check Register Detail 4-26-17
	10c3 Revenue and Exp - Mar 2017 (2)
	10d Payroll Transfer Report 4-20-2017
	10f1 Twp Report 4-3-2017 through 4-9-2017
	10f2 Twp Report 4-10-2017 through 4-16-2017
	10g Global Ends Policy Annual Review
	10h Policy Goverance 2 5 Financial Condition and Activities
	10i 2 5 10 Cash Flow Ratio
	10j Policy Goverance 2 6 Asset Protection Annual Review
	11a RFBA2017WaterReliabilityStudy
	11b RFBA2017TruckPurchase
	11c RFBA - Board Governance Policy Review 3 3
	11d RFBA - Board Governance Policy Review 3 4

